
  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The February 2019 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be held 

will be held on Thursday February 21, 2019 at 6:00 pm at the West Elmira Library, 1231 W. 
Water St., Elmira, NY 14905. The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to 
attend, please inform Ms. Kappanadze  (607-259-2646), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-
8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2019-07)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2019-08)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2019-09)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report  
7.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions for February (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of the 2018 NYS Annual Report 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the Annual Report as submitted. 

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Kappanadze)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-10) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (meeting postponed)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document 2019-12) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Chollet)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee (O'Dell-Wehling) 
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business     
11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  
 



(Minutes of the JANUARY 17, 2019 meeting of the Chemung County Library District 
Board of Trustees. Document #2019-07)  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Marge Kappanadze. Present were 
Pat Silvernail, Ann Hayes, Pam Larnard, Bonnie Chollet, Phyllis Rogan, Will Wehling, 
Martha Smith, Jack Schamel, Lillian White, Lee Saginario, Karl Schwesinger and Tim 
Blandford and new members Rachel Dworkin and Jessica Roberts. Also present were Joan 
Santulli and Ron Shaw, the Library District’s Administration. 
 
The following trustees took their oath of office:  Ann Hayes – District #2, Rachel Dworkin – 
District #7, Lee Saginario – District #11, Karl Schwesinger – District #12, and Jessica 
Roberts – District #15.   
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the December 2018 meeting (Document #2019-01) were 
presented for board review. Ms. Larnard moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to approve the 
minutes of the December meeting as submitted in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Financial  Report. The December 31, 2018 Financial Report (Document #2019-02) was 
presented for board review. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Dworkin to accept the 
Financial Report dated 12/31/18 as distributed. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2019-03). Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Hayes that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 1/9/19 – General Fund - 
$47,081.54 as distributed in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    

 
Correspondence.   None  
  
President’s Report.  Ms. Kappanadze welcomed the new trustees.  New trustee orientation 
is scheduled for Wednesday, January 30th at 6pm at the West Elmira Library.  All board 
members are welcome to attend.  Margo Gustina from the Southern Tier Library System 
(STLS) will be running the meeting.  
 
Ms. Kappanadze thanked everyone who worked on planning and making the Jim Sleeth 
plaque dedication a success.  Approximately 50 people, past and present staff members, 
attended the evening event.  
 
Regarding Committee membership, every board member should serve on at least one 
Committee.  The Buildings & Grounds Committee meets the first Wednesday of each month 
at 5:30pm with Karl Schwesinger as the Chair.  The Budget & Finance Committee meets the 
second Wednesday of each month at 8:00am with Jack Schamel as Chair.  Ad Hoc 
Committees include the Election & Continuity Committee (Phyllis Rogan) which meets as 
needed, the Advocacy Committee (Will Wehling) which meets the second Thursday of each 
month at 6pm and the Personnel Committee (Bonnie Chollet) which is meeting in January 
on the 29th but will be choosing a new monthly meeting date for future meetings.  All 
Committee meetings are held at the Steele Memorial Library.  
 
President Kappanadze encouraged all members of the CCLD board to become a member of 
one of the library support groups, i.e. the Friends groups or Big Flats Advocates.  She 
reminded board members that February 27th is Library Advocacy Day in Albany.  In past 
years, STLS has rented a bus that takes board members from member libraries to the event. 
More information will follow as it is received.  



Regarding the Sexual Harassment Prevention Training, Mr. Shaw was asked to re-send the 
email from STLS that has the link to the training.  Board members are asked to take the 
training and at a future meeting, the group questions will be discussed so that CCLD meets 
the requirements set by New York State.  
 
National Library Week is scheduled for mid-April.  Last year board members gave each 
CCLD staff member a token of appreciation for their service to the District.  Ms. 
Kappanadze would like to continue this practice.    
 
Director’s Report.   
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C). Resolved by Ms. 
Dworkin, seconded by Ms. Silvernail that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the January 
list of Personnel actions as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Mr. Shaw passed around the 2019 board roster and requested that board members review 
and update the list.  Regarding the request to change the Legislation, he stated that he will 
call Senator O’Mara’s office to get an answer on the status of our request.   
 
Mr. Shaw reported that he will begin canvassing for a PT Teen Clerk within the next few 
months.  Regarding the upcoming vacancy in the Administrative Assistant position, the 
Civil Service exam is expected to be offered in June.  There is money in the budget for both 
of these part-time positions. These funds will be used to give the IT Department funding to 
hire a consultant to assist with the major updates to all computers to Win10.   
 
During the past week, CCLD has received favorable interviews with the news media 
concerning CCLD events and programs.  
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last 
month were submitted in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2019-04). President Kappanadze reported that the following trustees 
have agreed to serve on the Executive Committee for 2019.  President – Marge Kappanadze, 
Vice-President – Phyllis Rogan, Secretary – Martha Smith and Treasurer – Jack Schamel.  
Ms. Hayes moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to approve the 2019 slate of officers.  VOTE:  
Unanimously Approved. The Executive Committee meets the first Wednesday of each 
month at 6pm.   

President Kappanadze stated that she would like the CCLD board to participate in a fund-
raiser with the Friends of CCLD – a Read-A-Thon.  The Friends Committee is in favor of 
working with CCLD on this fund-raiser.  You get pledges from friends and family on how 
many minutes/hours you plan to read.  A suggestion was made to hold the fund-raiser either 
during National Library Week or Spring Break (and invite students to participate).  CCLD 
branch libraries could hold a scaled-down version of the fund-raiser. More information will 
be forthcoming. 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-05). Mr. Shaw reported that CCLD 
has received a check from Chemung County for PILOT funds in the amount of $12,311.46 
and has received the final $20,000 distribution from the Steele Memorial Library Foundation 
for fiscal year 2019.  
 



Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019/06).  The extreme weeding 
project has been completed and staff is happy with the results.  Mr. Shaw stated that he was 
glad that the library was closed during the project.  The Friends of CCLD sorted through the 
weeded books prior to CCLD dispensing with them.  A new timeline has been received from 
Kim Bolan for the Teen Space project.  The shelving units are set to be moved beginning on 
January 28th.  The bid document for the Teen Space will be ready for distribution tomorrow.  
A legal notice will be placed in the paper with companies having 20 days to respond if 
interested.  The estimated completion date is April 30, 2019.  
 
Regarding the Public Restrooms at the Steele Library, the floor tiles are badly cracked.  The 
contractor has been made aware of the issue.  
 
Personnel Committee. Nothing to report.  
  
Election & Continuity Committee. Ms. Rogan stated that the Committee met this evening. 
Districts that will be open for election in November of 2019 are currently being held by Will 
Wehling, Marge Kappanadze (last year), Lillian White, Pam Larnard and Tim Blandford 
(not running again).  She requested that these trustees let her know if they plan to run for 
another term.    
 
Advocacy Committee.  Mr. Wehling stated that the Community Baby shower normally 
attracts 3-400 people.  Regarding the Read-A-Thon mentioned earlier, he believes this 
should be considered and Advocacy event.  He reported that CCLD has not received any 
applications back from the distributions made to the Elmira Heights Elementary students.  
 
Old Business.  Mr. Schamel showed board members an example of the frame that will be 
used to post the Board Member roster at each library.  Board members approved the frame 
as shown.  
 
Regarding the loaning out of the Wi-Fi Hotspots, it was reported that there continues to be a 
waiting list for the devices.  They are very popular.  
 
Regarding staff members attending meetings, Mr. Shaw plans to discuss this with the union 
because it could require paying the staff members comp time and mileage for attending the 
board meeting.  
 
Executive Session. Mr. Blandford moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to move into 
Executive Session to discuss the employment of two individuals.  VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.  Mr. Blandford moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes to come out of Executive 
Session. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved. 
 
New Business.  Regarding the Administrative Assistant’s salary for 2019, Mr. Schamel 
moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to give Joan Santulli a 2% raise for fiscal year 2019. 
VOTE:  Unanimously Approved. 
 
Regarding the hiring of a replacement for Ms. Santulli upon her planned retirement, Ms. 
Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel to hire a new Full-Time Administrative 
Assistant in July 2019 to train with Ms. Santulli prior to her leaving. VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved. 
 



The meeting was adjourned at 6:45pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held 
on Thursday, February 21st, 2019 at 6:00pm at the West Elmira Library, 1231 West 
Water Street, Elmira, New York. 













 Document #2019-10      
 
Report of the February 6th, 2018 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive 
Committee were Marge Kappanadze, Phyllis Rogan, Martha Smith and Jack Schamel; 
and Joan Santulli, CCLD management. Other board members in attendance were Lillian 
White, Karl Schwesinger, Bonnie Chollet, Lee Saginario, Pam Larnard, Rachel Dworkin 
and Will Wehling.  
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Santulli submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 2/6/19 for the 
General Fund - $34,782.09.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to approve 
payment of the bills as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
President Kappanadze had nothing new to report at this time. 
 
Director Ron Shaw reported that the shelving in the dumpster will be recycled.  The cost 
of storing, moving, shipping, etc. would be cost prohibitive and impossible for CCLD to 
do for this project.   
 
The link to the Sexual Harassment Prevention Training has been sent to Library District 
Department Heads to be sure that their staff is taking the training.  The review will be 
done in small groups with staff discussion.  Department Heads will sign off and certify 
the staff members who have completed the training.  It was determined that board 
members will hold their group discussion at the April meeting of the board.  STLS is 
supplying the questions to be used during the discussion portion of the training.  
 
Ms. Santulli has completed the 2018 Annual Report.  The report will be forwarded to 
board members for review prior to the March meeting of the board at which time a 
resolution is needed approving the report.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:15pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, March 6th, 2019 at 6pm in 
the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.    



Document #2019-11 
 
Report of the February 14th, 2019 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Jack Schamel, Lillian White, Jessica Roberts 
and Marge Kappanadze. Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD 
Administration. The meeting opened at 8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the January 31st, 2019 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report will 
be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 2/14/19 for the General Fund - $26,014.01 
and the Grant Fund - $461.33. The Unpaid Bills Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD 
board for its consideration.  
 
There was a brief discussion regarding the possibility of the Van Etten Library moving to the 
former Village Hall.  Van Etten officials are in the fact-gathering process at this time.  
 
Ms. Kappanadze stated she saw a news release that the Tompkins County Libraries have 
eliminated the collection of fines from their patrons.  A news release concerning CCLD’s 
decision to eliminate fines from juvenile materials was sent out at the end of last year. The news 
media may have decided not to utilize the interview.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:07am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, March 13th, 2019 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



Document #2019-12  
 
Report of the February 6th, 2019 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Mr. Schwesinger, Ms. Smith, Ms. Saginario and Ms. 
Kappanadze. Also attending was Joan Santulli and Ronald Shaw, CCLD Management. 
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 
 
Teen Section.   The shelving units have been moved, the non-fiction collection shifted with sorting 
continuing.  There is a problem with the position of the shelving units – they are 36 inches apart at the base, 
but with oversized books on those shelves, the position does not meet ADA codes.  Mr. Shaw will be 
meeting with Bolan Associates to determine what must be done to correct the problem.  He feels that CCLD 
should not be asked to pay for the costs to fix this issue.  Regarding the shelves being discarded in a 
dumpster, a concerned citizen sent an email wondering about recycling.  Mr. Shaw will respond to the email 
with facts about recycling and the reason that the Library District needed to utilize a dumpster for this 
particular project. Committee members received a copy of the newest timeline.  A request for bids for the 
Wall construction has been placed in the paper. Sealed bids are due to CCLD by February 19th.  A pre-walk 
through is scheduled for February 7th.  
 
Other Steele Projects.  The installation of the electronic sign requires Zoning Board approval.  Mr. Shaw will 
coordinating with the City and County for the necessary electrical work.  Regarding the parking lot, it was 
suggested that the board should consider re-striping the lot in 2019. 
 
Big Flats Library.  An exterminator was hired to get rid of a major ant problem.  
 
Van Etten Library.  The possibility of the library being moved to a different location is in a consultant’s 
hands for gathering information.  Mr. Shaw will contact the Town for an update 
 
Mr. Shaw submitted an updated list of Capital projects completed on Library District buildings since 2006.  
The first portion shows updates from the Existing Conditions Report from 2006.  The second lists the 
projects which have been completed since 2010.  Mr. Shaw stated that the Library District needs to start 
forecasting for the future, for example replacing HVAC systems at the Big Flats and West Elmira Libraries.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, March 6th, 
2019 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 


	Agenda 2019-02
	Document 2019-07
	Document 2019-08
	Document 2019-09
	Document 2019-10
	Document 2019-11
	Document 2019-12

